
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD

14 September 2018

To:  The Town Mayor and all Members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Leighton-Linslade Town Council to 
be held on Monday, 24 September 2018 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 
1HD.

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

Prayers will be said at 1920 hours

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

3.  TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

4.  LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS 

5.  QUESTIONS 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 24 September 2018

(a) To receive questions and statements from members of the public as 
provided for in Standing Order Nos.1 (f) and 1 (h)  

(b) To receive questions from Councillors as provided for in Standing Order 
No.8 (a) , provided three clear days’ notice of the question has been given 
to the person to whom it is addressed.

6.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Town Council 
meeting held on 25 June 2018.

7.  TOWN BENCHMARKING REPORT (Pages 7 - 52)

By invitation, Mike King of People and Places will attend the meeting to give a 
summary presentation on the second town benchmarking report.

8.  COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 53 - 110)

To receive the Minutes of Committee meetings (attached) and to consider any 
recommendations contained therein:

a) Planning & Transport Committee 11 July 2018
b) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 23 July 2018
c) Policy & Finance Committee 30 July 2018
Recommendation at minute reference 389/PF 

d) Planning & Transport Committee 1 August 2018
e) Planning & Transport Committee 22 August 2018
f) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 3 September 2018
g) Partnership Committee 6 September 2018 (to follow)
h) Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018 (to 

follow)
i) Planning & Transport Committee 12 September 2018 
j) Policy & Finance Committee (to follow) 17 September 2018
Recommendations at minute reference at 399/PF and  410/PF

9.  2017-2018 YEAR END ACCOUNTS (Pages 111 - 118)

(a) To receive a report from the Auditor, including issues arising, and 
produce an appropriate action plan (to follow).

(b) To approve and accept the Auditor’s Certificate and Opinion on the 
Annual Return (to follow).

10.  QUARTERLY UPDATE 

To receive a verbal presentation from officers regarding achievements within 
the last three months (July – September 2018).



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 24 September 2018

11.  REPORT FROM CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCILLORS 

To receive a verbal updated from central Bedfordshire councillors on matters 
affecting the parish (if applicable).

12.  APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 

To consider any changes to appointments and to receive verbal reports from 
Councillors, where applicable.

13.  APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES 

To consider any changes to appointments, if applicable.

14.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following 
resolution should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial 
to the public interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to 
Meetings) Act 1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the 
confidential nature of the business about to be transacted which involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information. The public and press to 
withdraw from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion 
regarding the following.   

15.  TOWN COUNCIL MATTERS (Pages 119 - 126)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, 25 JUNE 2018 AT 7.30 PM

Present:   Councillors C Palmer 
R Berry
D Bowater
A Brandham
C Chambers
S Cotter
A Dodwell
K Ferguson
M Freeman
S Jones
F Kharawala
T Morris
C Perham
G Perham
B Spurr

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio, Town Clerk
I Haynes, Head of Grounds and Environmental 
Services
S Sandiford, Head of Democratic and Central 
Services
M Jahn, Committee Officer

Members of the Public: 0

244 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from 
Councillors K Cursons, S Ward, E Wallace and D Perham.

245 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, and the nature of those 
interests, that they might have in any of the items under consideration at the 
meeting.

No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.

246 TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councillor C Palmer advised Council that he had attended 16 events since 
his appointment as Mayor and wanted to mention three which were 
particularly successful and memorable.  The Big Lunch on 3 June had been a 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 25 June 2018

Page 106

very successful family event in Leighton Buzzard and thanks were given to 
officers and Council members for their hard work in achieving this.  The 
Truck Convoy on 9 June had received many complimentary comments from 
members of the public in the town and from the truck drivers who had taken 
part.  Finally, the Charity Concert on 15 June with the Leighton-Linslade 
Concert Band had been an excellent event with donations of £1,000 received 
for the Mayor’s charities.

247 LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS

In Councillor E Wallace’s absence, Councillor S Jones gave a brief update on 
events since the last Council meeting.  The work at Linslade Recreation 
Ground was nearly complete with the installation of new play equipment 
which proved to be very popular with the residents in the area.  Work would 
be beginning on the pedestrian entrances to the park from Waterloo Road 
and Station Approach imminently.

The electronic signage at the railway station had been installed and was 
being used to promote events such as the Big Lunch, with positive comments 
received from members of the public.  The events run by the Town Council 
including the Big Lunch, Canal Festival and the Christmas Festival were 
always well received by members of the public and showcased the town in a 
positive light. Also, the Love Your Local Market campaign and relaunch of the 
market had been described as ‘outstanding’ by NABMA and Council agreed 
this should be promoted via social media on our website.

The Council members also wanted to give their congratulations to Councillor 
S Ward on her recent marriage.

248 QUESTIONS

(a) There were no questions from members of the public.

(b)  No questions had been received from Councillors

249 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Council received the draft minutes of the previous Council meeting held on 
21 May 2018 for consideration.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 21 May 
2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed accordingly.

250 COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council received the draft minutes of Committee meetings held since the 
Council Annual Meeting on 21 May 2018.

RESOLVED to receive the minutes of the following meetings:

Page 2



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 25 June 2018

Page 107

(a) Planning & Transport Committee 30 May 2018
(b) Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 June 2018

Minute reference 123/GE: Council gave consideration to the recommendation 
made by Grounds & Environmental Services Committee on 4 June 2018 in 
respect of purchase of two vehicles funded by half Earmarked Reserves 
(9000/950 Plant & Vehicle Replacement) and half by entering into a five-year 
hire purchase agreement for a maximum value of £21,000, for which all 
payments would be made from the Grounds & Environmental Services 
revenue budget.

RESOLVED to endorse the purchase of two vehicles be funded by half 
Earmarked Reserves (9000/950 Plant & Vehicle replacement) and half by 
entering into a five-year hire purchase agreement for a maximum value 
of £21,000.

(c) Partnership Committee 7 June 2018

A suggestion was made for a conference to be held between the Partnership 
Committees of Leighton Buzzard, Dunstable and Houghton Regis to meet at 
Leighton Buzzard at a future date and choose a topic for discussion 
agreeable by all parties.  Councillor R Berry, Chair of Partnership, to co-
ordinate suggestions and agree on a date.
 
(d) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 13 June 2018
(e) Policy & Finance Committee 18 June 2018

Minute reference 370/PF: Council gave consideration to the recommendation 
made by the Policy and Finance Committee on 18 June 2018 in respect of 
Data Protection and approval of a number of new and revised policies. 

RESOLVED to approve the following policies: 

(a)   Information & Data Protection Policy
(b)   ICT Security Policy
(c)   Information Security Incident Policy
(d)   Removable Media Policy
(e)   Town Council Privacy Notice
(f)    Subject Access Requests procedure 

Minute reference 372/PF: Council gave consideration to the recommendation 
made by the Policy & Finance Committee on 18 June 2018 to change of 
meeting date for Planning and Transport Committee from 1 May 2019 to 24 
April 2019.

RESOLVED to endorse change of date from 1 May 2019 to 24 April 2019. 

Minute reference 373/PF: Council gave consideration to the recommendation 
made by the Policy & Finance Committee on 18 June 2018 to re-endorse the 
Tree Management Policy for the period 2018-2021.

Page 3



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 25 June 2018

Page 108

RESOLVED that the Tree Management Policy be re-endorsed for the 
period 2018-2021.

(f) Planning & Transport Committee 20 June 2018.

251 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017-2018 AND ACCOUNTING 
STATEMENTS 2017-2018

Minute reference 367/PF:  Council received the Annual Governance 
Statement and Accounting Statements for 2017-2018 and following the 
recommendation made by Policy and Finance Committee on 18 June 2018, 
gave consideration to the approval of these documents. 

RESOLVED: 

(a)  To approve and sign section 1 – Annual Governance Statement    
2017-2018

(b)  To approve and sign section 2 – Accounting Statements 2017-2018

252 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Minute reference 367/PF: Council received the Statement of Accounts 2017-
2018 (which are not subject to audit) and, further to the recommendation 
made by the Policy and Finance committee on 19 June 2017, gave 
consideration to the approval of the accounts.

RESOLVED to approve the Statement of Accounts for 2017-2018 (which 
are not subject to audit).

253 QUARTERLY UPDATE

A brief presentation was given to Council by the Town Clerk, highlighting the 
events of the previous quarter, including the Big Lunch, launch of the 
summer Music in the Park programme, market relaunch project, the 
introduction of Mod.gov which is now live for Council Meetings, Best Bar 
None scheme as well as many other work streams.  Forthcoming projects 
included Linslade Canal Festival, TACTIC summer project, Mayor’s charity 
Meal on 17 July and the Charity Ball in October.

The refurbishment of the town centre toilets was nearing completion and the 
ground fixings for the umbrellas at the market had now been installed.  Also 
under the High Street Improvement Scheme work had now begun on at least 
three premises within the High Street.  

Under the Youth Promise Grant Scheme £54,940.35 in grants had been 
made to organisations in Leighton Buzzard with two more potential 
applications to be submitted.   TACTIC WW1 Art Project would be displaying 
their work around the War Memorial over the coming months.

Page 4



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 25 June 2018

Page 109

With regard to the electronic signage installation, Council agreed that 
Councillors should chase up Central Bedfordshire Council regularly to 
hopefully speed up the installation of the remaining signs within the Leighton 
Buzzard area.

RESOLVED to note the information.

254 REPORT FROM CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCILLORS

Councillor A Dodwell advised Council that the Jet Patcher had repaired pot 
holes in various roads within Leighton Buzzard. A temporary repair had taken 
place on the canal bridge with a permanent repair anticipated for the autumn, 
along with repairs to the Vimy Road roundabout.

255 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

Brief announcements were made in respect of the Town Twinning with a visit 
to Coloummiers in November 2018 to attend their Remembrance Day 
Service.   Council was also advised of the potential for a new twinning 
arrangement with a town in Italy, albeit discussions were in the very early 
stages.

RESOLVED to note the information.

256 APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES

There were no changes required to appointments to Committees.

257 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Council considered that any further discussion regarding Town Council 
Accommodation would be prejudicial to the public interests.

RESOLVED that under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature 
of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion regarding 
Town Council accommodation.

258 TOWN COUNCIL ACCOMMODATION

Council received an update report in respect of the Town Council 
accommodation and the extension of the lease for a further 20 years, thus 
safeguarding future accommodation of the Town Council.

Minute reference 375/PF: Council gave consideration to the recommendation 
made by the Policy & Finance Committee on 18 June 2018 regarding Town 
Council Accommodation.

Page 5



Leighton-Linslade Town Council Monday, 25 June 2018

Page 110

RESOLVED to endorse the terms for the new lease for town council 
accommodation.

The meeting closed at 8.45 pm. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 25 JUNE 2018. 

Chair                          24 SEPTEMBER 2018

Page 6



Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 175

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 11 JULY 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman
A Dodwell (Chair)
C Palmer (substituting for S Ward)
C Perham (substituting for D Perham)

          Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Central and Democratic 
Services)

Members of the public:     0

373/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors S Ward, D Perham 
and S Cotter. 

374/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.  

375/P PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no questions from members of the public. 

376/P MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held on 20 June 2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 20 June 2018 be approved as a correct record and were 
signed accordingly.

377/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee reviewed applications received up until 6 July 2018. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection 
be made to application reference CB/18/02158 (96 Plantation Road) on the 
grounds of insufficient off-road car parking to meet Central Bedfordshire 
parking standards. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



Planning and Transport Committee 20 JUNE 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 176

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection 
be made to application reference CB/18/02326 (3 Saturn Close) on the 
grounds of insufficient off-road car parking to meet Central Bedfordshire 
parking standards.

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/01885 (128 Highfield 
Road), subject to the applicant being able to demonstrate that Central 
Bedfordshire parking standards will be met. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/02037 (55 Hydrus Drive), 
as long as the new wall enclosing the amenity land is no higher than the 
existing wall of number 57 Hydrus Drive.

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to the following applications:

1.  CB/18/02153 1 HOCKLIFFE STREET
2.  CB/18/02060 10 LAUREL MEWS
3.  CB/18/02176 15 LIME GROVE, LINSLADE
4.  CB/18/01180 115 CLARENCE ROAD
5.  CB/18/02137/ADV  PETS AT HOME, UNIT C GROVEBURY ROAD
6.  CB/18/02150 460 BIDEFORD GREEN, LINSLADE
7.  CB/18/02149 22 LINNET WAY
8.  CB/18/02151 3 NELSON ROAD
9.  CB/18/02221 3 WESTON AVENUE
10.  CB/18/02216 15 OXENDON COURT
11.  CB/18/02260 31 ROSEBERY AVENUE, LINSLADE
12.  CB/18/01594 33 MELFORT DRIVE, LINSLADE
13.  CB/18/02288 3 APPLE TREE CLOSE, LINSLADE
14.  CB/1802318 4 DICKENS YARD, LINSLADE
15.  CB/18/02162 2 GLOBE LANE, LINSLAD
16.  CB/18/02267 9 FYNE DRIVE, LINSLADE
17.  CB/18/02118 117 HOCKLIFFE ROAD
18.  CB/18/02256 21 SOUTHCOURT AVENUE, LINSLADE
19.  CB/18/02296 37 HOCKLIFFE ROAD

RESOLVED to note the following applications for works to trees: 

1. CB/TCA/18/00202 43 REDWOOD GLADE
2. CB/TCA/18/00231 5 WATERLOO ROAD, LINSLAD
3. CB/TRE/1800215 6 REDWOOD GLADE

378/P     TRANSPORT MATTERS

The Committee received a copy of concerns raised by residents regarding safety 
on Derwent Road and Soulbury Road due to reduced visibility caused by 
overgrown vegetation. It was agreed to pass the correspondence on to Central 
Bedfordshire Council to investigate and respond. 

Page 54



Planning and Transport Committee 20 JUNE 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 177

It was noted that the speed sign on Hockliffe Road appeared to not be working 
and agreed to also make the principal authority aware of this.

The Committee was made aware of ongoing concerns raised by residents in the 
vicinity of Southcott School regarding car parking by parents, despite the 
implementation of parking measures and enforcement activity. Cars were still 
being parked on the grass verge on Soulbury Road and it had been noted that 
when events took place at the school on a weekend, the school car park was not 
being opened, resulting in a large number of cars parking in a residential area. 

It was agreed to write to the school about this and to investigate further the 
potential for installing knee high posts on Soulbury Road to discourage parking 
on the grass verge. 

379/P      INFORMATION ITEMS

No information items had been received. 

The meeting closed at 2004 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 11 JULY 2018.

Chair                   1 AUGUST 2018 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



                                                                                                                                      Page 48

  
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

MONDAY 23 JULY 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: S Cotter – in the Chair
D Bowater
J M Freeman
F Kharawala

Also in attendance:  V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

                    Members of the public: 3
Members of the press:  0

117/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillor 
C Chambers.

118/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made and no dispensations had been 
requested. 

119/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

A question was raised regarding grant money which had been allocated to 
Friends of the Earth in the past and whether this money had been used to 
help fund the campaign against the Town Council in regards to the Market.  
It was suggested the use of this money should be monitored by the Councl.  

The member of the public was thanked for attending the meeting.

120/CE YOUTH PROMISE GRANT

The Committee received a summary  for 1 application received for the Youth 
Promise Grant.

Two representatives from Leighton Buzzard Youth Netball Club attended the 
meeting and answered questions from the Committee in support of their grant 
applications.  A number of views were expressed and the applications were 
assessed in terms of meeting criteria, benefit to the Youth organisations now 
and in the future and financial need.  

Page 57



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 23 JULY 2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 49

Organisation Purpose of grant Amount Outcome
Leighton 
Buzzard 
Youth 
Netball Club

Broaden their training base to 
allow more children/young 
people to attend sessions

£9,146.65 Approved

RESOLVED to approve Youth Promise Grant funding amounting to 
£9,146.65 to Leighton Buzzard Youth Netball Club.

The meeting closed at 1955 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 JULY 2018.

Chair            3 September 2018

Page 58



Page 150

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

30 JULY 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors: R Berry
S Cotter
K Cursons
J M Freeman
S Jones 
C Palmer
G Perham
E Wallace – in the Chair
S Ward

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 
Services)
C Cummins (Finance Officer)

Members of the public: 1 (part meeting)

376/PF APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A Dodwell, K 
Ferguson and F Kharawala. 

377/PF DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. 

Councillor C Palmer declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 
(Payments) as the list of payments included a payment relating to Leighton-
Linslade in Bloom, of which his wife was a committee member.

Councillors C Palmer and G Perham declared a personal interest in agenda 
item 7 (Town Twinning) as members of/representatives to the Town 
Twinning Forum. 

378/PF QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from members of the public. 

379/PF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 18 June 2018 for consideration.

Page 59



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 151

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 18 June 2018 be approved as a correct record and 
were signed accordingly. 

380/PF SUB-COMMITTEES

(a) The Committee received the draft minutes of the Personnel Sub-
Committee meeting held on 2 July 2018. It was noted that the 
recommendations would be considered later in the meeting as a 
separate agenda item. 

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Personnel Sub-
Committee meeting held on 2 July 2018.

(b) The Committee received the draft minutes of the Community Safety Sub-
Committee meeting held on 16 July 2018.

Minute reference 07/CS:  the Committee considered the 
recommendation to endorse that the Town Council enter into a new 
Framework Agreement with Bedfordshire Police for the financial year 
2018-2019. It was noted that without the framework agreement being in 
place, the Town Council would be unable to engage with the Police to 
the same extent and the Police would be unable to share as much 
information with the Council. The recommendation was in respect of the 
agreement itself rather than endorsing expenditure within the Operation 
Dodford framework. 

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Community Safety 
Sub-Committee meeting held on 16 July 2018.

RESOLVED to endorse that the Town Council enter into a new 
framework agreement with Bedfordshire Police for the financial 
year 2018-2019. 
 

381/PF    TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee received a report to consider amending the Terms of 
Reference for the Personnel Sub Committee to ensure they remained fit for 
purpose, following discussion at the Personnel Sub-Committee meeting 
held on 2 July 2018. The following proposed amendments to the existing 
Terms of Reference were given consideration:

1. Overview of staffing structure and staffing budget, ensuring that it is 
commensurate with objectives of the Council.

2. Review staff sickness absence at least once per year.
3. Review staff training and identify and agree training needs for the Town 

Clerk and other senior members of staff. To form a panel comprising 
three Councillors to undertake the Town Clerk’s annual performance 
appraisal, including target setting and identifying training needs. 

Page 60



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 152

4. Ensure Council employees are working in a safe environment.
5. Produce Code of Conduct for staff.
6. Review all new and revised policies and procedures affecting employees 

and make recommendations to the Policy and Finance Committee.
7. Review Job Description and Statement of Main Terms and Conditions of 

Town Clerk.
8. Where appropriate, to consider matters relating to the Town Clerk’s 

employment including training, overtime, annual leave and sickness 
absence. Receive notification of the Town Clerk's annual leave and 
matters relating to overtime working and sickness.

9. Informally hear any grievances raised by the Town Clerk.
10. Informally advise the Town Clerk on any disciplinary matters.
11.Support the Town Clerk in succession planning for key senior staff who 

may wish to retire.
12.Recruitment and/or termination of contract for the Town Clerk and other 

senior members of staff.
13.To consider and where appropriate, approve proposed minor 

amendments in staffing structure, where proposed changes are within 
existing salary budgets and will not have any adverse impact upon 
existing employees. 

14.To monitor and make decisions regarding contracts & service level 
agreements relating to employment matters, where these are within 
existing budgets. 

RESOLVED to accept the proposed amendments to the Terms of 
Reference for the Personnel Sub-Committee as outlined above.

It was agreed that only changes which fell within the parameters of point 13 
above would have delegated authority but all other proposed staffing 
changes would continue to be recommended to the Policy and Finance 
Committee, or where appropriate to Council, for endorsement, in order to 
safeguard both individual employees and the Council as a corporate body. 

382/PF     TOWN TWINNING

The Committee received and considered a verbal update from Anne Guess, 
the Chair of the Town Twinning Forum regarding exploring the potential to 
twin with a town in Italy. The proposal had been put forward by a local 
employee and it was noted that forging twinning links brought many 
potential benefits to each town, including encouraging language learning 
and links with not only schools, clubs and organisations but possibly also 
with businesses.

The Twinning Forum had written to contacts in Italy and awaited a 
response. The Forum did not anticipate that an additional twinning 
agreement would require any additional funding, as the group was already 
undertaking voluntary fundraising to supplement their grant funding.

It was noted that any formal twinning agreement would need to be approved 
by the councils of both towns. 

Page 61



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 153

The Committee thanked Anne Guess for attending the meeting and advised 
they would await a further update in due course.  

RESOLVED to note the information.

383/PF COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN

The Committee received a report summarising the key responsibilities of the 
Committee, as well as the objectives within the Town Council’s Three Year 
Plan 2015-2018 which fell within the remit of the Committee.  It was noted 
that the budget setting process would shortly begin for 2019-2020. 

The Committee was advised that there was likely to be a delay in the 
development of a Community Emergency Plan due to ill health of a key 
volunteer.

RESOLVED to note the Committee Work Plan and Objectives for 2018-
2019.

384/PF JUNE PAYMENTS 2018

The Committee received a schedule of payments which had previously 
been approved for payment by the Town Clerk and countersigned by two 
account signatories.          

The schedule for June, dated  26 June 2018,  included BACS payments 
amounting to £226,020.25 (page numbers 2369-2383) and cheque 
payments amounting to £4,697.70 (cheque numbers 17235-17257), 
including White House petty cash amounting to £144.94, Astral Park 
£154.68 and TACTIC £61.88.

The monthly salaries listing for June 2018 amounting to £101,019.64 gross 
was received.  A cash book report for June 2018, including details of all 
direct debit payments, was also received.

It was noted that all payments had been made within the budget and that 
there were no irregularities to be drawn to the attention of the Committee. 

A question was raised and answered regarding the annual budget for 
cleaning of the public conveniences.

The Committee noted the payments in respect of the Linslade Canal 
Festival and thanked all those involved in the event, which had been very 
successful and much enjoyed by members of the public.

It was suggested that for future payments reports, Members should email 
officers in advance with any queries relating to payments, in order that an 
answer could be given at the meeting. 

Page 62



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 154

RESOLVED to note the schedule of accounts for June 2018.

385/PF THREE MONTH BUDGETING REPORT

The Committee received a budget monitoring report for the period April to 
June 2018. A query was raised regarding costs compared to budget for the 
market security barrier. It was noted that although £10,000 had been 
awarded in grant funding to the Friends of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom, only 
£7,500 had been received to date.

A question was raised regarding the phasing of payments and whether the 
report took this into account. It was suggested that for future budget 
monitoring reports, officers highlight any expenditure which was not in line 
with anticipated phasing. 

 RESOLVED to note the report.

386/PF BUDGET PROCESS

The Committee received a report setting out the proposed timescale for the 
2018-2019 budget setting process.  
 
RESOLVED to note the proposed timetable for the 2018-2019 budget 
setting process.

387/PF ASSET REGISTER

The Committee received the asset register for consideration, including land 
and buildings, infrastructure assets, community assets and equipment.  It 
was noted that a process had been started of migrating the asset register 
information to different software, which would allow mapping and 
photographing of assets. This was a significant piece of work which would 
take some time to complete.

A question was raised regarding depreciation and it was agreed that answer 
would be provided after the meeting. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

388/PF INSURANCE CLAIMS 2017-2018

In accordance with its terms of reference, the Committee received a report 
outlining insurance claims for the period July 2017 – June 2018. 

RESOLVED to note the report regarding the Town Council insurance 
                policy and claims for 2017-18.

Page 63



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 155

389/PF DATA PROTECTION UPDATE

The Committee received an update regarding Data Protection and was 
asked to consider recommending approval to Council of a Document 
Retention Policy, which had been developed in accordance with guidelines 
issued by the National Association of Local Councils and the Society of 
Local Council Clerks. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

RECOMMENDED to Council to approve the proposed Document 
Retention Policy. 

390/PF EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) 
Act 1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential 
nature of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion 
regarding consultation with residents on objectives, staffing matters 
and land east of Leighton-Linslade.

391/PF RESIDENT CONSULTATION ON TOWN COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

The Committee received and considered a report regarding the undertaking 
of a public consultation exercise in respect of future Town Council 
objectives. Following completion of the majority of objectives within the 
current three year plan 2015-2018, it was anticipated that a five year plan 
for 2019-2023 would be developed alongside the relevant financial plans to 
support projects. 

In order to understand residents’ views and priorities, it was proposed that 
face-to-face consultation be undertaken during September/October at 
various locations within the town. Discussion took place regarding the 
different potential methods of consultation and the possibility of online 
consultation, but it was agreed that it was crucial to obtain feedback from a 
valid cross-section of residents and that this could only be ensured through 
direct contact. In addition, it was recognised that there were many subtle 
complexities involved and a face to face conversation was the best way in 
which to be able to explain the different roles of the two councils and to 
ensure that views captured were relevant to the services the town council 
was able to provide.  

It was anticipated that 500 people would be interviewed and the results 
would be presented to Committee in November 2018.

Specific questions would be developed in consultation with the appointed 
professional consultant and would be circulated to Committee Chairs for 
consideration.

Page 64



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 156

The view was expressed that the discussion ideas document was fairly 
detailed and it was hoped that consultation would be on broader themes to 
allow room to incorporate feedback from residents.

RESOLVED:
(i) to note the report.
(ii) To endorse the proposed draft Five Year Plan objectives.
(iii) To endorse, in principle, the broad-brush themes to support the 

public engagement exercise.
(iv) To appoint Consultant A (Howdo Research) to carry out the 

public engagement exercise within a £10,000 budget 
(Professional Fees earmarked reserve 9035/920). 

392/PF STAFFING MATTERS

The Committee considered the recommendations made by the Personnel 
Sub-Committee on 2 July 2018 (Minute Reference 145/PR Staffing 
Matters). The first recommendation was in respect of the Cultural and 
Economic Services team. 

RESOLVED to:
(i) Approve the restructure in the Cultural and Economic Services 

team, as proposed to the Personnel Sub-Committee on 8 
January 2018.

(ii) To approve a voluntary redundancy application to the sum equal 
to contractual entitlement by the individual concerned. 

The second recommendation was in respect of the Grounds and 
Environmental Services team.

RESOLVED:
(i) To endorse the contractual entitlement to the individual 

concerned.
(ii) To provide an agreed-form reference to any prospective 

employers.
(iii) That a contribution be made to meet legal costs as well as 

meeting the costs of creation of a settlement agreement. 

393/PF LAND EAST OF LEIGHTON LINSLADE

The Committee received a verbal update regarding housing development 
on land east of Leighton-Linslade.

The Committee agreed that in principle, it held no objections to working 
collaboratively with Central Bedfordshire Council and the developer 
consortium in the successful delivery of the Leighton-Linslade Urban 
Extension.

Page 65



Policy and Finance Committee 30 JULY 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 157

RESOLVED:

(i) To request the Town Clerk to write to Central Bedfordshire 
Council (officers and councillors) to confirm the above.

(ii) To consider representation/attendance at the Central 
Bedfordshire General Purposes Committee meeting to be held 
on 23 August 2018. 

The meeting closed at 2101 hours.   

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 JULY 2018.

Chair  17 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Page 66



DOCUMENT RETENTION POLICY

Introduction

In the course of carrying out its various duties, powers and activities, the Town 
Council collects information from individuals and organisations and generates 
a wide range of documentation including letters, emails, reports, invoices, 
contracts and so on. Documents may be in paper or electronic format.

Retention of specific documents may be necessary to fulfil statutory or 
regulatory requirements, to meet operational needs, to preserve documents of 
historic value or to provide evidence. 

It is important that documents be retained while they fulfil a specific purpose 
and remain relevant. The premature destruction of records could cause the 
Council difficulty in meeting operational requirements or in defending any 
future litigious claims. 

However, documents should not be retained indefinitely. Storage space for 
both paper and electronic records is limited. Beyond that, data protection 
regulation requires that personal data “should not be stored for longer than is 
necessary”. 

Scope/Purpose

The purpose of this document is to provide a corporate policy framework to 
govern decisions on whether a document or piece of information should be 
retained (and if so, for what period) or be disposed of (and if so, when and by 
what method). 

The policy will be reviewed on a regular basis. 

Responsibilities

Data protection legislation requires that data should be processed “in a 
manner that ensures appropriate security and protection”. Data must be 
accurate, kept up to date, stored safely and securely, and not retained for any 
longer than is necessary.

All Town Council employees and elected Members of the Town Council have 
a personal responsibility to adhere to data protection legislation. 

Managers are expected to be pro-active in undertaking or instigating audits of 
information/documents to ensure that the Town Council is retaining or 
destroying information appropriately, as outlined in this policy. 

Page 67



If in doubt about the action to be taken, all queries should be referred to the 
Council’s Data Protection Officer. 

Storing of Documents

All employees have a responsibility to ensure that information is clearly 
labelled and saved/stored in the appropriate place, in order that colleagues 
may find documents in future. Electronic documents and emails should not be 
saved on an individual computer but onto the shared network drive. This is to 
ensure the information is backed up and also that it is accessible when 
required by any member of the Council. 

Paper records should be stored in clearly labelled files or in clearly labelled 
archive boxes. Once no longer immediately relevant, archive boxes should be 
stored in the cellar archive room at the White House. 

Before printing, saving and storing paper records, give careful consideration 
as to whether those records are actually required to be kept. An electronic 
copy may suffice in many cases. If in doubt, please seek guidance from a 
member of senior management team or the Data Protection Officer. 

Disposal

Electronic records should simply be deleted. Be aware of where records may 
be saved: for example, something which is saved in your email folder may 
also be saved elsewhere on the system. If you are deleting the record, take 
care to delete all copies of it.

Paper records which contain any personal data (name, contact details etc) 
should be securely destroyed by shredding. The Town Council has a monthly 
collection for the destruction of confidential waste and receives certification to 
prove destruction has taken place. Where possible, please time any disposal 
of paper records to fit with the next monthly collection. 

Paper records which are already available in the public domain and which do 
not contain any personal data do not need to be securely shredded. 

While the Town Council rarely shares personal data with any third parties, in 
certain circumstances this may apply – for example, for payroll purposes. 
Where this is applicable, please ensure any third party organisation has been 
advised to destroy the record in question and keep a record of your request to 
them.

Considerations

Every employee has a responsibility to be aware of any statutory or regulatory 
requirements relating to the retention of data. 

If there is no specific legislation advising otherwise, then the guidelines 
contained within this policy should be adhered to, unless there is a sound 

Page 68



operational reason for retention or the document or record is of historic 
interest or intrinsic value.

For items such as publicity material, programmes, marketing or photographs, 
consider whether these will be useful in future. Photographs should be 
labelled and their ownership clear in order to be useful in future. 

While documents should be saved only on the shared network drive and not 
on the desktop or hard disk of a personal computer, any computers reaching 
the end of their life will automatically have all data removed prior to 
destruction. 

Planning applications

Planning applications are retained by the planning authority, Central 
Bedfordshire Council. Copies received during consultation by the Town 
Council will be retained only until the application has been considered by the 
Council or its officers and for a maximum of three months from receipt. 

In exceptional circumstances, for example significant development sites, 
planning records may be retained for a longer period for reference purposes. 

Any correspondence with residents on planning applications will be retained in 
accordance with Town Council guidelines for general correspondence. 

Retention schedule

1. DEMOCRATIC PROCESS
1.1 Council agendas and 

reports
Indefinite Archive

1.2 Council minutes Indefinite Archive
1.3 Rough notes from 

meetings
Until minutes are approved

1.4 Councillor declaration 
of office & contact 
details

Two years after end of term 
of office

1.5 Councillor register of 
interests

Two years after end of term 
of office

1.6 Electoral register Until new register is received 
from the local authority

Preserved by 
electoral authority

1.7 Public consultation 
responses

One year after consultation 
has ended

Data collected 
should be 
anonymised for 
longer term 
record.

1.8 Enquiries and 
complaints 
correspondence

Three years after last action

1.9 Organisational 
information for a civic 

Three years after last action

Page 69



event
1.10 Corporate plans, 

strategies, annual 
reports

Permanent archive after 
superseded

Archive 

1.11 Members’ allowances 
register

Six years Tax, Limitation Act 
1980

2. LEGAL
2.1 Expressions of interest 

(contracts & tendering)
Two years after last action

2.2 Evaluation of tender 
documentation

Six years after last action Limitation Act 
1980

2.3 Tender documents and 
quotations (successful)

Six years after last action Limitation Act 
1980

2.4 Tender documents and 
quotations 
(unsuccessful)

One year after start of 
contract

2.5 Contracts and 
variations to contracts

Six years after last action

2.6 Agreements Six years after last action
2.7 Legal advice Three years after last action
2.8 Litigation Seven years after last action
2.9 Byelaws Retain permanently
2.10 Trust deeds Retain permanently
3. HUMAN RESOURCES
3.1 Personnel files 

including offer letter, 
references, contracts 
etc

Six years after termination of 
employment

3.2 Application forms 
(unsuccessful 
candidates)

Six months from date of 
successful appointment to 
vacancy

3.3 Equal Opportunities 
monitoring forms

Six months from receipt Anonymise for 
statistical 
purposes

3.4 Disciplinary, grievance, 
complains, 
investigations

To be retained for a finite 
period as advised by HR and 
as specified to employee 
during process.

3.5 Timesheets Three years
4. FINANCE
4.1 Receipt and payment 

amounts
Indefinitely Archive

4.2 Payroll records Twelve years Superannuation
4.3 Loan files Seven years after loan has 

been repaid
4.4 Inventories and 

stocktaking
Two years after 
administrative use is 
concluded

4.5 Asset acquisition and Six years (under £50k) or 12 

Page 70



disposal years (over £50k)
4.6 Annual budget
4.7 Orders, invoices, cash 

books, receipts, 
journals, tax records, 
petty cash records, 
postage books

Six years VAT, tax, 
Limitation Act 
1980

4.8 Audit reports Seven years
4.9 Records of fees and 

charges
Six years

4.10 Annual audited 
accounts

Retain permanently

4.11 Insurance Employers liability: 40 years
Public liability: 21 years
Insurance policies: 3 years

The Employers 
Liability 
(Compulsory) 
Regulations 1998

4.12 Investment records Retain permanently
4.13 Bank paying in book 

stubs, cheque book 
stubs, bank statements

Last completed audit year

4.14 VAT records Six years
(but 20 years for vat on rents)

VAT

5. LAND AND PROPERTY
5.1 Conveyancing records Twelve years after last action
5.2 Plans Retain for life of property or 

building plus twelve years
5.3 Legal documents 

relating to sale or write 
off of property

Fifteen years after conclusion

5.4 Renovation works: 
project plans, 
specifications, 
manuals, certificates of 
approval

Retain for the life of the 
building

5.5 Leases, licences, 
valuation

Fifteen years after expiry of 
lease

5.6 Title deeds, contracts, 
wayleaves, maps, 
plans and surveys

Retain permanently

6. VEHICLE MANAGEMENT
6.1 Leases, contracts, 

quotes for acquisition 
or disposal of vehicles

Seven years after disposal of 
vehicle

6.2 Maintenance of 
vehicles, log books & 
usage reports

Seven years after disposal of 
vehicle

6.3 Insurance Seven years after expiry of 
policy

6.4 Claims records Seven years after conclusion

Page 71



7. HEALTH AND SAFETY
7.1 Playground equipment 

inspection records
Twenty-one years after 
destruction of equipment

7.2 Equipment inspection 
records

Six years after destruction of 
equipment

7.3 Property asbestos files Forty years from last action
7.4 Risk assessment 

records
Three years from last 
assessment

7.5 Accident books for 
adults

Three years from closure

7.6 Accident books for 
children

Twenty five years from 
closure

7.7 Assessment under 
H&S regulations

Retain permanently

8. CEMETERIES
8.1 Register of interments 

& entombments
Retain permanently Local Authorities 

Cemeteries Order 
1977

8.2 Cemetery register Retain permanently
8.3 Cemetery plans Retain permanently
8.4 Permits for burial Retain permanently
8.5 Internal working 

documents
Destroy after interment has 
taken place

9. FACILITIES 
9.1 Applications to hire, 

booking forms, lettings 
diaries, copies of bills 
to hirer

Six years

9.2 Risk assessments from 
hirers

Six years after last action 
unless an accident/incident 
reported (then retain for 25 
years)

10. ALLOTMENTS
10.1 Register and plans for 

allotments
Retain permanently Audit

10.2 Allotment holder 
details, contracts, 
correspondence etc

One year after last action

11. MARKET
11.1 Market trader details, 

forms, records
Three years after ceasing to 
trade

11.2 Financial performance 
records

Six years

11.3 General 
correspondence, 
enquiries etc

One year after last action

12. TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE
12.1 Attendance register One year
12.2 Young person files Up to ten years (to ensure 

Page 72



(including one to one 
notes)

individual aged over 21 
years)

12.3 Agency, partner, 
supplier details & 
correspondence

Three years after last action

12.4 Holiday and play 
scheme information

Three years after last action, 
except if any accidents 
reported (then follow H&S 
guidelines for retention)

13. COMMUNITY EVENTS, COMMUNITY GRANTS, BEST BAR NONE, 
PARTNERSHIP PROJECTS, PROMOTIONS, PROJECTS, MAYORAL 
RECORDS, HONORARY BURGESS NOMINATIONS, ANY OTHER AREAS OF 
TOWN COUNCIL SERVICES
13.1 General 

correspondence, 
tickets, receipts, 
queries, complaints, 
contact details, supplier 
details, maps, seating 
plans, & any other 
general administration

Up to three years * Information may 
be anonymised for 
statistical 
purposes prior to 
archive/destruction

13.2 Four-year Guaranteed 
Grants scheme

Two years after conclusion of 
four year grant term

13.3 General Grants or 
other one-off grant 
payments

Up to three years after grant 
given.

13.4 Mayor’s charity bank 
account – cash book, 
statements, etc

See Finance guidelines

14. ORGANISATIONS SUPPORTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL 
(e.g. In Bloom, Town Twinning, P3, Community Forum steering group)
14.1 Individual contact 

details
One year after leaving group

14.2 General 
correspondence, 
queries, emails, notes, 
plans & general admin

One year after last action

14.3 Meeting agendas and 
minutes

Retain permanently

*employees are asked to apply common sense principles as well as 
data protection principles in determining which information to retain and 
for which period of time. For small, one-off events it may suffice to 
maintain records for six months after the event date. For larger, 
recurring events it may be prudent to maintain records for three years. 
Individuals have the right to request their personal data be deleted at 
any time. 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Page 178

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 1 AUGUST 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman
S Ward – in the Chair
G Perham (substituting for D Perham)
B Spurr
A Brandham
S Cotter
D Bowater (substituting for A Dodwell)

          Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Central and Democratic 
Services)

Members of the public:     7

380/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors A Dodwell 
(substituted by D Bowater) and D Perham (substituted by G Perham). 

381/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  

Councillor D Bowater declared that he would be attending as substitute the next 
meeting of the Central Bedfordshire Development Management Committee and 
would therefore have to abstain from voting on some planning applications.   

382/P PUBLIC QUESTIONS

Members of the public spoke in objection to application reference CB/18/01001 
(10 Copper Beech Way). Although the application had been revised so that a 
smaller house was now proposed to be built, residents of neighbouring properties 
felt that the original objections remained valid, particularly in respect of building 
on Green Belt land. 

Members of the public spoke in objection to application reference CB/18/02600 
(Leedon Service Station). Concerns raised included a loss of privacy for 
adjoining properties as they would be overlooked by the proposed developments, 
the possibility of flood risk and concerns regarding insufficient car parking 
provision, in an area in which on-street parking was already problematic for 
residents. 

Members of the public were thanked for attending the meeting and reminded that 
Central Bedfordshire Council would ultimately determine both applications. 

Page 75



Planning and Transport Committee 1 AUGUST 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 179

383/P MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held on 11 July 2018. It was confirmed that a letter had been sent to 
Southcott Lower School regarding parking issues. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 11 July 2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly.

384/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee reviewed applications received up until 27 July 2018. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection 
be made to application reference CB/18/02379/OUT (Land at Spinney Park 
and Spinney Pool) on the grounds that the proposed development was 
contrary to policy, as the land in question was designated as a Main 
Employment Area. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection 
be made to application reference CB/18/02427 (Corbetts Hill Farm, Taylors 
Ride) on the grounds that the proposed development was contrary to 
policy, as the land in question was designed Green Belt and no exceptional 
circumstances had been demonstrated to justify development.

RESOLVED to note application reference CB/18/02649/OUT (Clipstone 
Park, Leighton Road) and to comment that the Town Council actively 
welcomed the proposed development of employment land.

RESOLVED to note application reference CB/18/02615/RM (Clipstone Park, 
land south of Vandyke Road) and to comment that the Town Council would 
actively welcome early involvement in the proposed development. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection 
be made to application reference CB/18/02600 (Leedon Service Station) on 
the grounds that the proposed height and bulk of Block A would have an 
overbearing impact on neighbouring properties. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection 
be made to application reference CB/18/01001 (10 Copper Beech Way) on 
the following grounds:

- That no evidence of very special circumstances had been given to 
justify the proposed development on Green Belt land
- The proposal would have a detrimental impact upon the Area of 
Special Character
- The overbearing nature of the proposed development on adjoining 
residential properties
- That the proposal might not meet Central Bedfordshire parking 
standards

Page 76



Planning and Transport Committee 1 AUGUST 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 180

- Concerns regarding visibility, safety and practicality of proposed 
vehicular access
- Concerns regarding the visual impact on the landscape from the 
other side of the river and canal (Linslade)

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to the following planning applications:

1) CB/18/02488 21 STEPPINGSTONE PLACE
2) CB/18/02465 44 HOCKLIFFE ROAD
3) CB/18/02530 OAK BANK SCHOOL, SANDY LANE
4) CB/18/02565 85 DRAKES AVENUE
5) CB/18/02567 81 SOUTH STREET
6) CB/18/02421 6 MARKET MEWS, MARKET SQUARE
7) CB/18/02663 88 REGENT STREET
8) CB/18/02419/LB 10 CHURCH SQUARE
9) CB/18/02665/ADV LAKE STREET, OUTSIDE MORRISONS PETROL 

STATION
10)CB/18/02547/ADV CLIPSTONE BROOK LOWER SCHOOL
11)CB/18/02309 ST BARNABAS CHURCH
12)CB/18/01842/VOC CHAMBERLAINS BARN QUARRY
13)CB/18/02280 39 CLARENCE ROAD
14)CB/18/02782 137 CAMBERTON ROAD, LINSLADE
15)CB/18/02791 26 MILLBANK
16)CB/18/02590 JALNA, HOCKLIFFE ROAD

RESOLVED to note the following works to trees:

(a) CB/TRE/18/00248 25 THE HEATH
(b) CB/TRE/18/00257 8 THE PADDOCKS, LINSLADE
(c) CB/TRE/18/00256 47 HEATH COURT

385/P     TRANSPORT MATTERS

There were no transport matters to report. 

386/P      INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee received and considered correspondence regarding public 
consultation on proposals to expand London Luton Airport.  The consultation was 
open until 31 August and therefore should the Committee wish to make any 
formal response, then this could be considered at the next meeting on 22 August. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

Page 77



Planning and Transport Committee 1 AUGUST 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 181

The meeting closed at 2025 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 1 AUGUST 2018.

Chair                 22 AUGUST 2018 

Page 78



Page 182

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 22 AUGUST 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors J M Freeman
A Dodwell – in the Chair
C Perham (substituting for D Perham)
S Cotter
A Brandham
K Cursons (substituting for S Ward)
J Davies

          Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Central and Democratic 
Services)

Members of the public:     0

387/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors B Spurr, S Ward 
(substituted by K Cursons) and D Perham (substituted by C Perham).

388/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  

Councillor J M Freeman declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest in 
application reference CB/18/02852 (land adj to former Royal Air Force site, 
Swales Drive) and would not vote on this item.

389/P PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no questions or statements from members of the public. 

390/P MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held on 1 August 2018. 

Minute reference 384/P (Planning applications): Councillor A Dodwell advised 
that she had called in the application for Leedon Service Station (CB/18/02600) 
so that if it was recommended for approval, it would come before the 
Development Management Committee for determination. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 1 August 2018 be approved as a correct record and were 
signed accordingly.

Page 79



Planning and Transport Committee 22 AUGUST 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 183

391/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee reviewed applications received up until 17 August 2018. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/02852 (land adjacent to 
former RAF site, Swales Drive) but that in line with comments submitted 
previously, the Town Council would ask that the properties have 
pedestrian access from Harmony Row. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/02896 (10 Heron Road) 
but that the Town Council would ask that a condition be added to any 
planning consent specifying that the new accommodation only be used as 
ancillary to the main dwelling. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to the following planning applications:

1. CB/18/02774/LB THE GLOBE INN, LINSLADE
2. CB/18/02895 3 LOYNE CLOSE, LINSLADE
3. CB/18/02846 UNIT A1 LANCER COURT, GROVEBURY ROAD
4. CB/18/02785 30 MOWBRAY DRIV, LINSLADE
5. CB/18.02944 L STREET
6. CB/18/02764 LAND NORTH OF GEORGE BROWNS 

IMPLEMENTS LTD, GROVEBURY ROAD
7. CB/HDG/18/00274 LAND TO THE NORTH OF BOSSINGTON LANE 

& THE MARTINS DRIVE
8. CB/18/02924 17 HARTWELL CRESCENT

RESOLVED to note the following works to trees:

1. CB/TCA/18/00265 ICKNIELD HOUSE, 28 GROVE ROAD
2. CB/TCA/18/00279 6 DINGLE DELL
3. CB/TRE/18/00281 71 CAMBERTON DRIVE, LINSLADE
4. CB/TCA/18/00282 21-21A HOCKLIFFE STREET
5. CB/TRE/18/00286 5 TAYLORS RIDE
6. CB/TCA/18/00293 LAND BEHIND WILKINSONS, HIGH STREET

392/P     TRANSPORT MATTERS

It was noted that danger points marked out in paint on Stoke Road by Central 
Bedfordshire Council had not yet been repaired and that the paint markings were 
fading. It was agreed to contact Highways in respect of this.  

393/P      INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee received correspondence from Central Bedfordshire Council 
dated 6 August 2018 in respect of a planning appeal for application reference 
CB/17/04327 (10 Copper Beech Way).  

RESOLVED to note the information.

Page 80



Planning and Transport Committee 22 AUGUST 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 184

The meeting closed at 1955 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 22 AUGUST 2018.

Chair         12 SEPTEMBER 2018 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



                                                                                                                                      Page 50

  
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

3 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: R Berry (substituting D Bowater)
A Brandham
A Dodwell (substituting C Chambers)
S Cotter – in the Chair
G Perham
J M Freeman
F Kharawala 

Also in attendance:  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
T Quinn (TACTIC Manager) (left 2023)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 
Services)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
Mr L Baldock, Elephant Wi-Fi

                    Members of the public: 5
Members of the press:  0

 
121/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillor 
C Chambers (substituted by Councillor A Dodwell) and Councillor D Bowater 
(substituted by Councillor R Berry).

122/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made.

123/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from the public.

124/CE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

The Committee received the draft minutes of the previous committee 
meetings held on 13 June 2018 and 23 July 2018.

Page 83



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 3 SEPTEMBER  2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 51

Minute reference 113/CE point b: it was noted that the £500 contribution 
would no longer be required for the purchase of a sixth community 
defibrillator.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Cultural and Economic Services 
Committee held on 12 June 2018 and 23 July  2018 be approved as a 
correct record and were signed accordingly.

125/CE MARKET SUB-COMMITTEE

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 
meeting held on the 16 August 2018 for consideration.

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 
meeting held on 16 August 2018. 

126/CE TOWN CENTRE WI-FI 

By invitation, Mr L Baldock of Elephant Wi-Fi gave a presentation to the 
Committee on town centre wi-fi, the aim being to help Members gain further 
detail and decide whether to pursue its delivery.

The Committee raised questions regarding the cost of installation, licence 
and support costs and where the access points would be located.  The cost 
of installation would be approximately £3000 per access point and the licence 
and support would be £30 per month for each access point.  The access 
points would be located  on lamp posts or CCTV posts and the wi-fi would 
cover approximately 500 users from one access point.

RESOLVED to instruct officers to investigate further the potential for 
delivery of town centrre Wi-Fi provision for future Committee 
consideration.

127/CE ROTARY CLUB OF LEIGHTON LINSLADE

The Committee received and considered  a request for funding for the 30-
year anniversary of the May Day Fayre in 2019, organised by the  Rotary 
Club of Leighton Linslade. Following discussion the Committee agreed to 
provide a contribution to this event of £2,500.

RESOLVED to endorse the one-off contribution of £2,500 from 
earmarked reserves (970/9057) for the Rotary Club of Leighton 
Linslade’s 30th May Fayre celebrations on 6 May 2019.

128/CE BUSINESS NETWORKING EVENT

The Committee received and considered  a report on the evaluation of the 
Business Networking Event to continue the funding level for the coming three 
years with a target sponsorship amount per year to contribute towards the 
cost of hosting the event.

RESOLVED to –

Page 84



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 3 SEPTEMBER  2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 52

1.1 note the report and its findings over the previous three years.
1.2 endorse the 3 year plan for the event thus maintaining its current 

level of funding, £2000, (101/4510) and sponsorship model.

129/CE TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION 

The Committee received  and considered a report to update members of work 
undertaken at TACTIC during May, June and July 2018 including the Youth 
Work Programme, staffing and youth counselling.

Members were advised that talks were on-going with CHUMS regarding 
youth counselling as RELATE would no longer be able to provide the service 
and the money paid to RELATE would be reimbursed to the Town Council.

A question was raised regarding the decline in attendance at TACTIC of the 
16 years and over age group.  This was attributed to the natural ebb and flow 
of young people using the centre and that the older age group preferred  one-
to-ones rather than activity based events which the younger children 
favoured.

RESOLVED to -

1.1 note the report
1.2 endorse proposed staff recruitment and counselling service 

contract.
1.3 endorse the refreshed delivery plan to cover the next two-year 

period, 2018/19 to 2019/20.

130/CE YOUTH PROMISE GRANT FUND

The Committee received summaries for 3 applications received for the Youth 
Promise Grant.  

Representatives from the three organisations attended the meeting and 
answered questions from the Committee in support of their applications. A 
number of views were expressed and the applications were assessed in 
terms of meeting criteria, benefit to the Youth organisations now and in the 
future and financial need.  

Organisation Purpose of grant Amount Outcome
Leighton 
Buzzard 
Athletics 
Club

To improve the quality of the 
training facility/experience and 
increase membership for athletes 
age 9 and above.

£30,000 Approved

Leighton 
Buzzard 
Rugby 
Football Club

To expand the Junior rugby 
academy and retain current 
membership levels and to deliver 
additional hours training for 
volunteers, kit and uniforms.

£18,000 Approved

Page 85



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 3 SEPTEMBER  2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 53

Naval 
Cadets 
Corps/TS 
Ocean

To improve volunteer skills and 
training, update and enhance kit 
and equipment

£10,273.34 Approved

RESOLVED to approve Youth Promise Grant funding amounting to 
£58273.34 to three applicants (as above).  

131/CE PIGEON MANAGEMENT

The Members were advised this report would be brought back to Committee 
at a later date as investigations were still on going as to the best solution for 
pigeon management.

132/CE ARCHITECTURAL LIGHTING SCHEME 

The Committee received and considered a report regarding the electrical 
contractor for the Architecutral Lighting Scheme and  who would provide the 
best value for money.  It was also suggested that the Contractor working on 
the market electrics and Christmas lights be approached.

RESOLVED to endorse Contractor D to undertake the electrical 
installation works for the Architectural Lighting Scheme.

133/CE MARKET TOWN REGENERATION FUNDED PROJECTS UPDATES

The Committee received a verbal update on the variable signage project and 
advised that the installation date would likely be April 2019.  Concerns were 
raised regarding timescales for delivery of the electronic variable signage and 
that the warranty would have expired before delivery and installation had 
occurred.  It was agreed that officers should write a letter to Central 
Bedfordshire Council to re-iterate these concerns and request that Central 
Bedfordshire Council  pay to extend the warranty for the signs.

Work had taken place on shop fronts under the High Street Improvement 
Scheme but some adjustments were still needed.  The Committee agreed 
that on the whole the completed work had enhanced the shops involved.

RESOLVED to note the information.

134/CE COMMITTEE WORK PLAN & OBJECTIVES 

The Committee received the Committee objectives and work plan for the 
current year, in accordance with the Town Council’s Three year plan.  

It was noted that the town centre Wi-Fi, pigeon management, an events 
update and the Best Bar None evaluation  would be included in the next 
meeting on the 15th October together with any Youth Promise Grant 
applications received.

Page 86



Cultural and Economic Services Committee 3 SEPTEMBER  2018      
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 54

RESOLVED to note the Committee objectives and work plan for 2018-
2019.

136/CE BUDGET REPORTS 

The Committee received a budget update report for the revenue budget and 
earmarked reserves.

RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting closed at 2105 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Chair            15 OCTOBER 2018

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



    

Page 96

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 6 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors S Jones - LLTC
T Morris – LLTC
C Palmer – LLTC
A Brandham (substituting for E Wallace)
G Perham (substituting for F Kharwala)
A Dodwell – CBC
B Spurr – CBC
R Berry - CBC  
G Tubb – CBC
K Ferguson - CBC

Also in attendance V Cannon (LLTC Head of Cultural & Economic 
Services)
S Hughes (Community Engagement Manager, 
CBC)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
G Borelli (Chair, LB First)
A Perry, (Central Bedfordshire Council)
V Wan, (Central Bedfordshire Council)
D Swain, T O’Sullivan and G Grundy (ARRIVA Bus 
Company)

           Members of the Public: 1
Members of the Press: 0

226/LLP APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received and accepted from the Town Clerk, Tricia 
Humber (LLCT/Community Forum), Councillor E Wallace (substituted by A 
Brandham) and Councillor F Kharwala (substituted by G Perham).

227/LLP DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested. 

228/LLP QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Questions were raised regarding the police station but it was confirmed the 
decision had been delayed. The retailers within the town requested that any 
repairs to the canal bridge should not be carried out during the Christmas 

Page 89



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 6 SEPTEMBER  2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  97

shopping period but the temporary repair seemed to be holding up at the present 
time so no change anticipated until the new financial year.  

Members were asked if Marks and Spencer would still be opening in the new 
Grovebury Road retail park and this was confirmed. Also a question was raised 
regarding the taxi rank parking within the town and the repairs undertaken by 
the Highways Department and whether checks would be carried out once the 
repairs had taken place.  

229/LLP MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Partnership Committee 
meeting held on 7 June 2018. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Partnership Committee meeting held 
on 7 June 2018 be approved as a correct record and be signed 
accordingly.  

230/LLP NEET (NOT IN EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT OR TRAINING)

By invitation, Ms A Perry of Central Bedfordshire Council attended the meeting 
to provide information in respect of service support for NEET clients.

The Committee were informed that there had been no rise in NEETs within 
Leighton Buzzard.  Many forms of support were being offered to young people 
at risk of becoming NEET and during their period of being identified as NEET. 
CBC’s contracted services undertake this work.  

Central Bedfordshire Council would be seeking to undertake a new 
commissioning approach for services in the future with one contract being 
awarded for specialised targeted work. More locally sourced support would be 
provided to work to local needs. The aim is to take a more localised 
commissioning, or joint ‘SMART’ working approach between local groups for 
broader work remits. A careers portal is to be launched in April 2019.  It was also 
recognised that some young people would benefit from more apprenticeship 
style education instead of an academic route.

Ms Perry was thanked for her excellent presentation.

  231/LLP SCHOOL PLACES

By invitation, Mr V Wan of Central Bedfordshire Council attended the meeting to 
provide information in respect of school places. 

With the potential housing growth within the town consultations would be taking 
place with schools in terms of additional school places needed.  There could 
potentially be a deficit in the number of places available in the middle and upper 
school systems once the Eastern development had been completed.

Page 90



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 6 SEPTEMBER  2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  98

Discussions would be starting within the next few months regarding the three-
tier changing to a two tier system with assessment of site facilities to ascertain 
whether new schools would need to be built and where they should be located.  

Concerns were raised about the need for parents to know there are schools of a 
good standard available for their children to attend when they progress to senior 
age school. Also, that there would be enough senior schools locally in the future.   

Mr Wan was thanked for attending the meeting.

RESOLVED to note the information.

232/LLP CHANGES TO BUS ROUTES

By invitation, Mr D Swain, Mr T O’Sullivan and Mr G Grundy attended the 
meeting to provide information in respect of the change in bus services 
in and around Leighton Buzzard.

The Committee received an update regarding the extension of the D1 bus route 
from Sandhills/Astral area into the town and railway station and the possibility of 
future routes D2 and D3 once the Eastern extension had been completed.  It 
was suggested a timeframe be made and publicised widely for families moving 
into the new development to encourage bus use to lessen congestion at peak 
times within the town.  

A question was raised regarding the F70, F77 and the change in route as there 
was no direct service to Luton and Dunstable Hospital and also whether an 
earlier bus could be arranged for the 32 route into Leighton Buzzard.    Councillor 
A Dodwell would approach the Transport Team and it was suggested a letter be 
written to the Transport team from this Committee to request amendments to the 
above services.

RESOLVED to note the information.

233/LLP BUSINESS GROUPS UPDATES

The Committee received a brief update from LB First informing members that 
residents would be asked to submit nominations for the switch-on of the 
Christmas Lights on the 30 November.  A question was raised regarding the 
parking strategy and whether data had been gathered on revenue and car park 
use. Sarah Hughes confirmed the data would be included in the Central 
Bedfordshire update at the next meeting.  

Members also confirmed that on completion of the retail park the S106 money 
set aside for town centre enhancement would be used only for this purpose.

RESOLVED to note the information.

Page 91



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 6 SEPTEMBER  2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  99

234/LLP  COMMUNITY FORUM UPDATE

The Committee was advised that the feedback questionnaires received after the 
community forum event at the library in May had been analysed and members 
felt the results should be shared with members of the public via social media and 
the press. This would ensure the public recognise the event is not just an 
exercise and their concerns would be addressed. Actions undertaken because 
of feedback should be included in communications.

RESOLVED to note the information

235/LLP COMMUNITY FACILITIES GRANT

Two applications were received for funding one from Leighton Buzzard Hockey 
Club for £18,025 towards costs to dismantle and move a new club house facility 
to Vandyke School and the other from Leighton-Linslade Town Council who 
required £30,000 for refurbishment of a kitchen facility at a Community hall.  The 
Committee agreed the applications fit the criteria for S106 funding and would 
make a substantial contribution to facilities within the town. 

RESOLVED that £18,000 be given to Leighton Buzzard Hockey Club and 
£30,000 to Leighton-Linslade Town Council.

236/LLP STANDING ITEMS

(a) Joint Committee Review – a new date would be arranged for this review to 
consider a single set of Terms of Reference.  

(b) A question was raised regarding the land south of the High Street.  As this 
land would not imminently be used for building could it be used to provide a 
short-term solution to parking problems within the town.  This land is a prime 
site within the town and need to ensure it is continuously given high priority 
with Central Bedfordshire Council.

(c)  Taxis - Discussion still on-going regarding the new location of the taxis in the 
High Street.  Enforcement of illegal parking should be reported by taking 
photographs (include the Taxi licence number) and forwarding to 
Enforcement Officers at Central Bedfordshire Council. It was confirmed that 
enforcement activity had been targeted to this issue. 

(d) Anti-social behaviour & Homelessness – no place had been identified.

(e) Market Town Regeneration Fund – the three electronic signs had still not 
been installed and it was felt the delay was unacceptable.  The Town Clerk 
would be writing a letter at the request of the Cultural and Economic 

Page 92



Leighton-Linslade Partnership Committee 6 SEPTEMBER  2018     
_________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                        Page  100

Committee and the Partnership Committee requested to be included in the 
letter.

RESOLVED to note the information. 

237/LLP COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN

The Committee received and gave consideration to the objectives and work plan 
for the municipal year 2018-2019.  

RESOLVED to note the report.

238/LLP BUDGET REPORTS 

The Committee received a brief report regarding the current year budget to date.

RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting closed at 2152 hours. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THIS IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 6 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Chair 29 NOVEMBER 2018
 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



                                                                                                                                      Page 44

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

GROUNDS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

MONDAY 10 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present: Councillors: R Berry
A Dodwell
C Perham   
S Jones – in the Chair
S Ward
A Brandham

Also in attendance:  I Haynes (Head of Grounds & Environmental 
Services)
M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic & Central 
Services)
M Penton (Senior Centre Coordinator)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

                    Members of the public: 0
Members of the press:  0

124/GE    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors T Morris and B 
Spurr.

 
125/GE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. No declarations were made and no dispensations had been 
requested. 

126/GE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

No members of the public were present.

127/GE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Grounds and Environmental 
Services Committee meeting held on 4 June 2018. 

Minute reference 116/GE: it was confirmed that free dog waste bags were 
now available for distribution from Astral Park and the White House.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Grounds and 
Environmental Services Committee held on 4 June 2018 be approved as 
a correct record and were signed accordingly.

Page 95



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 45

128/GE COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN 

The Committee received the work plan for the municipal year 2018/2019.

RESOLVED to note the work plan.

129/GE THE USE OF HERBICIDES AND PESTICIDES

The Committee received and considered a report regarding the use of 
herbicides and pesticides across the town’s parks and open spaces.

RESOLVED to –

1.1 note the report
1.2 endorse until further notice, a self-imposed ban on the use of 

chemicals containing Glyphosate
1.3 endorse that officers lead on the discussions about a town-wide 

ban of Glyphosate in all of the town’s public spaces under the 
control of Central Bedfordshire Council

130/GE TOWN COUNCIL OWNED POLLINATOR SITES 

The Committee received and considered a report in respect of the way the 
Town Council-owned pollinator friendly sites would be managed in the future, 
following the end of the existing Service Level Agreement in March 2019.  It 
was agreed that the Town Council staff would be able to deliver the work 
needed to continue managing the pollinator sites, although ongoing support 
from volunteers would be welcomed.  Thanks were formally given to all the 
local volunteers for their work to date in supporting the pollinator initiatives.

RESOLVED to –

1.1 note the report.
1.2 endorse that the future funding and development of Town Council 

owned pollinator friendly sites be taken in-house.
1.3 Formally thank all the local volunteers for their work involved in 

supporting South Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth’s – ‘Keep the 
Buzz in Leighton Buzzard’ initiative and to welcome their ongoing 
support in helping deliver the in-house service delivery.

131/GE ASTRAL PARK 

The Committee received an update report in respect of the Astral Park Sports 
and Community Centre, including events, catering, marketing, football and 
school holiday activities. It was noted that income was on target for the year 
to date although expenditure was slightly higher and this was due to the 
renewal of yearly maintenance contracts and service plans.

The Astral Park website would be reviewed over the coming weeks giving a 
more up to date picture of the centre.  The enquiry form added to the website 
generated about 10-12 enquiries a week and this would be looked at to 
ascertain how many result in bookings.

Page 96



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 46

Work had been carried out on the football pitches prior to the new season to 
fill in cracks resulting from the dry summer and the goals maintained with 
new nets added.  

The quieter time at the centre was between 12.00 and 3.00 pm and during 
October an Older Persons week would be held providing activities with the 
hope of gaining bookings over this time of the day.  The D1 bus route had 
now been extended which would enable people to access the centre to take 
part in activities.  

The amount of vandalism around the site had decreased significantly 
allowing one football goal to be left out during the summer months for young 
people to use without any problems and with a good working co-operation 
being established between both parties.

RESOLVED to note the report.

132/GE PROJECTS UPDATES 

The Committee received a verbal update on the progress of various projects.

Linslade Recreation Ground – local companies have been approached about 
the installation of the railings on the station approach and although the 
Heritage Lottery Fund application for the Henry Finch Fountain had not 
progressed, other avenues would be explored.

A question was raised regarding funding for the restoration of the Henry Finch 
Fountain and it was agreed that securing external funding would be 
preferable.

Allotment Strategy – this would be going out in the next few weeks.

Play areas – all refurbishments were up to date and the next projects to be 
reviewed would be Pages Park and the adult fitness trail at Astral Park.

Bandstand – all improvements had been well received with just some 
brickwork repairs to be completed.

Hedgelaying – this project is on track and would be starting in the next few 
months.

Parson’s Close Friends Group – recruitment activity was still ongoing.

RESOLVED to note the report.

133/GE REVIEW OF GREEN FLAG AWARD RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee received a report in respect of the Green Flag Award for 
Pages Park and Parson’s Close Recreation Ground. The feedback and 
comments from the judges would be assessed and where appropriate, would 
be the subject of future work. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

Page 97



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 47

 

134/GE ROSPA PLAY AREAS INSPECTION REPORT 

The Committee received an update and findings from this year’s annual 
independent playground and equipment inspections.  Clarification was 
provided regarding the designation of ‘high’ risk for three sites and any repairs 
carried out would be covered under existing revenue budgets.  

RESOLVED to note the report.

135/GE   THREE MONTH BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 

 The Committee received a budget monitoring report for the period April to 
June 2018.

RESOLVED to note the report.

136/GE REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR  PAVILION HIRE, USE OF PARKS 
AND CEMETERY FEES FROM 1 APRIL 2019 

The Committee received and considered a report on the review of fees and 
charges for Pavilion hire  use of parks and cemetery fees from 1 April 2019.  
Proposals for the Pavilions would not apply to Astral Park as these fees would 
be the subject of separate review.

RESOLVED to –

1.1 endorse all fees and charges for Cemerteries be increased by the 
September 2018 Retail Price Index (RPI) plus 1% (and rounded up 
to the nearest 50p before VAT.

1.2 endorse all fees and charges for Pavilion hire and use of parks 
(excluding Astral Park) be increased by the September 2018 Retail 
Price Index (RPI) plus 1% (and rounded up to the nearest 50p before 
VAT)

1.3 endorse all fees and charges for all pitch hire be increased by the 
September 2018 Retail Price Index (RPI) plus 1% (and rounded up 
to the nearest 50p before VAT). However, this would be delayed 
until the 31st July 2019 to avoid a mid season  increase.

137/GE UNAUTHORISED ENCAMPMENT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Committee received a report to seek Member endorsement in respects 
of the way the Town Council manages unauthorised encampments on Town 
Council owned land.

RESOLVED to –

1.1 note the report
1.2  endorse and recommend to Policy and Finance Committee the 

Unauthorised Encampment Managmeent Policy as set out below:-

Page 98



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 48

i. The Town Council will by way of appropriate and measured 
target hardening take all reasonable steps to avoid the potential 
for future unauthorsie encampments to take place on Town 
Council land.

ii. That delegated powers be afforded to the Town Clerk in respect 
of dealing with unauthorised encampments should and when 
they occur.

138/GE ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

The meeting was briefly adjourned at 2030 hours in order to view the Pages 
Park Pavilion Building.

139/GE RECONVENE THE MEETING 

The meeting was reconvened at 2035 hours.

140/GE EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature 
of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion 
regarding:

(i) Pages Park Pavilion Refurbishment
(ii) Salvation Army Clothes Bank 
(iii) Parson’s Close refreshment concession
(iv) Parson’s Close ice cream concession

141/GE PAGES PARK PAVILION REFURBISHMENT

As highlighted during the brief tour of the building and as previously 
discussed by Committee, it was noted that options and costs for 
refurbishment of the pavilion were currently under review and that proposals 
would be brought to a future meeting for consideration. 

142/GE SALVATION ARMY CLOTHES BANK REPORT

The Committee received a report in respect of siting of a Clothing Recycling 
Bank on Town Council land.   After discussion the Committee agreed that 
the Town Council car parks would not be large enough to allow lorry access 
for collection and within the town this facility was offered by Charity shops 
and a clothing collection bank within a supermarket car park.

RESOLVED -

1.1 To note the report
1.2 Members agreed despite its well-meaning, the perceived dis-benefits 

appear to outweigh the benefits.  The car parks that the council runs 
are considered inappropriate by virtue of size and functionality. 

Page 99



Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018    
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                  Page 49

143/GE PARSON’S CLOSE REFRESHMENT CONCESSION

The Committee received and considered a report where three expressions 
of interest had been received.  After discussion Members agreed to appoint 
tenderer B to provide a café at Parson’s Close Recreation Ground.

RESOLVED -

1.1 To appoint Tenderer B (Community Action Bedfordshire) to 
provide a café offer within Parson’s Close Recreation Ground for a 
period of 5 years.

1.2 That the rent of £12,000 per annum be reviewd in 2 years’ time

144/GE PARSON’S CLOSE ICE CREAM CONCESSION

The Committee received and considered a report to seek member 
endorsement to undertake a competitive tender for the standalone 
concession for the right to sell ice-cream and minerals for a period of 5 years.

A question was raised regarding the sale of cold drinks from both  an ice 
cream van and the kiosk.  If the ice cream van could not sell cold drinks 
revised  negotiations may be needed with officers regarding  the tender.

RESOLVED to endorse that Officers undertake a competitive tender for 
the standalone concession for the right to sell ice-cream for a period of 
5 years.

The meeting closed at 2052 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Chair            2 DECEMBER 2018 

Page 100



Page 185

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:  Councillors A Dodwell – in the Chair
D Perham
S Cotter

          Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Central and Democratic 
Services)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

Members of the public:     0

394/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors J M Freeman and S 
Ward.  

395/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.  
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested. 

396/P PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no questions or statements from members of the public. 

397/P MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held on 22 August 2018. 

Minute reference 392/P: it was noted that notification had been received from 
Central Bedfordshire Council regarding planned repairs to a section of Stoke 
Road. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 22 August 2018 be approved as a correct record and were 
signed accordingly.

398/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee reviewed applications received up until 7 September 2018. 

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to application reference CB/18/03501 (39 Waterdell), 
subject to Central Bedfordshire parking standards being met. 

Page 101



Planning and Transport Committee 22 AUGUST 2018 
____________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                    Page 186

RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to the following planning applications:

1. CB/18/03058 8 WESTON AVENUE
2. CB/18/02903 98 WING ROAD, LINSLADE
3. CB/18/03085 VANDYKE UPPER SCHOOL
4. CB/18/03129 17 FIELDFARE

RESOLVED to note the following works to trees:

1.  CB/TCA/18/00285  5 THE HEATH
2.  CB/TCA/18/00314  25 NEW ROAD, LINSLADE
3.         CB/TRE/00301 3 MILEBUSH, LINSLADE

399/P     TRANSPORT MATTERS

The Committee received a copy of correspondence from Councillor JM Freeman 
raising concerns, on behalf of residents, regarding car parking in Lime Grove and 
The Paddocks. The issues were preventing access by vehicles such as road 
sweepers and delivery vans, but a greater concern was access by emergency 
vehicles.

RESOLVED to write to Central Bedfordshire Council to highlight the issue 
and request that consideration be given to implementation of parking 
measures in the area.   

400/P      INFORMATION ITEMS

The Committee was advised that the second application for development at 10 
Copper Beech Way had been approved by the Central Bedfordshire 
Development Management Committee. The original application was the subject 
of an appeal. 

RESOLVED to note the information.

The meeting closed at 1944 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 12 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Chair         3 OCTOBER 2018 

Page 102



Page 158

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

17 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS

Present Councillors: S Cotter
K Cursons
S Jones 
C Palmer
G Perham
E Wallace – in the Chair
S Ward
A Dodwell
K Ferguson
F Kharawala

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 
Services)
A Holden (Senior Administrative Officer)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

Members of the public: 0

394/PF APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J M Freeman and R 
Berry.

395/PF DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting. 

Councillor C Palmer declared a personal interest in agenda item 7 
(Payments) as the list of payments included a payment relating to Leighton-
Linslade in Bloom, of which his wife was a committee member.

396/PF QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from members of the public. 

397/PF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee received the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 30 July 2018 for consideration.

Page 103



Policy and Finance Committee 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 159

Minute reference 385/PF: a question was raised regarding the remaining 
£2,500 grant funding for Friends of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom and whether 
this had now been received.

Minute reference 383/PF: Committee Objectives and Work Plan – the 
Community Emergency Plan project had been delayed due to ill health but 
it was hoped this would resume in the near future.  

Minute reference 393/PF: Land East of Leighton Linslade – it was 
confirmed the Town Clerk had written to Eggington and Stanbridge Parish 
Councils and copied in Central Bedfordshire Council.  No response had 
been received yet but it was noted consultation would be taking place in 
January 2019.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee 
meeting held on 30 July 2018 be approved as a correct record and 
were signed accordingly. 

398/PF COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN 

 The Committee received a report summarising the key responsibilities of 
the Committee, as well as the objectives within the Town Council’s Three 
Year Plan 2015-2018 which fell within the remit of the Committee.  

 It was noted that the External Auditor’s report 2017-18 had not been 
received and it was hoped it would be available within the next week.

RESOLVED to note the Committee Work Plan and Objectives for 2018-
2019.

399/PF    RECOMMENDATIONS 

(i) The Committee received a recommendation from the Market Sub-
Committee of 16 August 2018 in respect of re-profiling the market budget 
(Minute reference 113/MK).

RESOLVED to endorse the reprofiled Street Market budget (cost 
centre (412) in order to address the shortfall in allocated budget to 
cover the cost of security.

(ii) The Committee received a recommendation from the Grounds & 
Environmental Services Committee on 10 September 2018 in respect of 
a draft policy for Unauthorised Encampment Management (Minute 
reference 137/GE).

RECOMMENDED to Council to endorse the Unauthorised 
Encampment Management Policy as follows:

i) The Town Council will by way of appropriate and measured 
target hardening take all reasonable steps to avoid the 

Page 104



Policy and Finance Committee 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 160

potential for future unauthorised encampments to take place 
on Town council land.

ii) That delegated powers be afforded to the Town Clerk in 
respects of dealing with unauthorised encampments should 
and when they occur.

400/PF     JULY PAYMENTS 

The Committee received a schedule of payments which had previously 
been approved for payment by the Town Clerk and countersigned by two 
account signatories.          

The schedule for July, dated 19 July 2018, included BACS payments 
amounting to £158,510.97 (page number 2399, 2403-2416) and cheque 
payments amounting to £2756.24 (cheque numbers 17258-17270), 
including White House petty cash amounting to £33.00, Astral Park £92.39 
and TACTIC £63.56.

The monthly salaries listing for July 2018 amounting to £96,775.23 gross 
was received.  A cash book report for July 2018, including details of all 
direct debit payments, was also received.

It was noted that all payments had been made within the budget and that 
there were no irregularities to be drawn to the attention of the Committee. 

RESOLVED to note the schedule of accounts for July 2018.

401/PF COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE
 

The Committee received a report and work plan in respect of 
communications, including the Town Council website, social media 
channels and overall communications strategy.  All websites were being 
reviewed with development plans being produced in conjunction with 
officers involved.

It was noted that Data Dashboards had now been implemented for all four 
websites and Members agreed this was an important tool to measure social 
media interaction.  

It was suggested that an on-line form be introduced to allow members of 
the public to raise any concerns they may have. This would be given 
consideration as part of the website development plan. Future proposals 
relating to the websites management would be presented to the Committee 
at its next meeting. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

Page 105



Policy and Finance Committee 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 161

402/PF RISK REGISTER ACTION PLAN UPDATE 

The Committee received a report giving a mid-year update on the risk 
register action plan for 2018-2019.

RESOLVED to note the report.

403/PF EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORT 2017-2018 
 
The Committee was advised that the report had not yet been received but it 
was anticipated that this would be presented to Council at its next meeting.

404/PF MOD.GOV – REVIEW OF FIRST THREE MONTHS 

The Committee received a verbal update regarding the first three months 
use of the Mod.gov management software.  A few issues had been 
identified but Members agreed the transition to using Mod.gov had been 
smooth and any problems would be addressed.

RESOLVED to note the report.

405/PF CENTRAL SERVICES BUDGETS 

The Committee received and considered a report which proposed the re-
profiling of several central services budget lines for 2019-20.  

RESOLVED to:

i) note the report.
ii) endorse the proposed budget reprofiling for a number of central 

services for 2019-2020, as outlined at 4.1 in the report (total to 
remain unchanged at £39,500).

iii) endorse an increase in the IT support budget by £756 from 2019-
2020, to reflect the additional email licensing costs.

406/PF STANDING ORDERS 

The Committee received a report to consider forming a Task & Finish Group 
to review potential amendments to Standing Orders, as a result of revised 
Model Standing Orders issued in April 2018 by NALC.

Councillors E Wallace, C Palmer and S Jones expressed an interest in being 
part of the Task and Finish group.

RESOLVED to establish a Task & Finish Group of no less than 4 
Councillors to review existing Standing Orders and the revised NALC 
model Standing Orders, with a view to recommendations being made 
to the Policy and Finance Committee at its meeting on 21 January 
2019.

Page 106



Policy and Finance Committee 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 162

407/PF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY

The Committee received and considered a report to endorse the revised 
Community Engagement Strategy which would set out the range of ways 
in which the Town Council communicated with the public.

RESOLVED to endorse the revised Community Engagement Strategy.

408/PF EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

 RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) 
Act 1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential 
nature of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion 
regarding:

i. Telecomms provider
ii. Professional fees

409/PF TELECOMMS PROVIDER 

The Committee received and considered a report in respect of telecoms 
provider for Council owned premises.

RESOLVED to -

1.1 note the report
1.2 endorse the renewal of our current contract to include the two 

additional sites (Astral Park and TACTIC) telephone lines and 
internet services.

1.3 note the upfront cost of £340.88 and monthly cost of £326.80 to be 
funded within the existing telephone budget.

410/PF PROFESSIONAL FEES 

The Committee received a report regarding legal matters and was asked to 
consider recommending to Council, subject to its decision on 24 September 
2018 regarding legal matters, to draw down funds from reserves to 
supplement the existing Professional Fees earmarked reserve (which 
presently stood at £10,000).

RECOMMENDED to Council that, subject to its decision regarding 
legal matters on 24 September 2018, up to £20,000 be drawn down 
from Town Council reserves to meet a likely shortfall in the 
Professional Fees Earmarked reserve.

Page 107



Policy and Finance Committee 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 
______________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                            Page 163

The meeting closed at 2102 hours.   

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Chair  19 NOVEMBER 2018

Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



 

Mazars LLP – Salvus House - Aykley Heads - Durham - DH1 5TS 

Tel: +44 (0) 191 383 6300 – Fax: +44 (0) 191 383 6350 – www.mazars.co.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership 
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London 
E1W 1DD. 
  
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK and Ireland by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit 
registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. 
 
VAT number: 839 8356 73 

 

  

Mr M Saccoccio 

Leighton Linslade Town Council 

The White House 

Hockliffe Street 

Leighton Buzzard 

Bedfordshire 

LU7 1HD 

  

  

Direct line +44 (0)191 383 6348 

Email local.councils@mazars.co.uk 

  24 September 2018 

 

Dear Mr Saccoccio 

Completion of the audit for the year ended 31 March 2018 

We have completed our audit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and I have pleasure in enclosing the 

certified Annual Governance and Accountability Return. The External Auditor’s Certificate and Report is 

given in Section 3.  

If there are any significant matters arising from the audit, they are summarised in the External Auditor’s 

certificate in Section 3. If we have identified minor scope for improvement we have recorded this on page 

2 of this letter. The Council must consider these matters and decide what action is required. In most cases 

this will be self-evident. In some instances we have referred to further guidance available, in particular, in 

the publication “Governance and Accountability for Local Councils – A Practitioners’ Guide (England) 

2010”. This can be obtained via your NALC or SLCC branch, or downloaded free of charge. 

Action you are required to take 

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 set out what you must do at the conclusion of the 

audit. In summary, you are required to: 

Publish (which must include publication on the authority’s website) a statement: 

 that the audit has been concluded and that the statement of accounts has been published; 

 of the rights of inspection conferred on local government electors by section 25 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014; and 

 the address at which, and the hours during which, those rights may be exercised. 

 Keep copies of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return for purchase by any person on 

payment of a reasonable sum.  

 Ensure that the Annual Governance and Accountability Return remains available for public access for a 

period of not less than five years beginning with the date on which the Annual Governance and 

Accountability Return was first published. 

 

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 do not specify the period the signed off accounts need 

to be on the council’s website but this period must be reasonable. 

  

Page 111

Agenda Item 9



 

  

 

    2/2 

 

Minor scope for improvement in 2018/19 

The Council has left Box 11 in Section 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR) and 

Box K of the Internal Audit Report blank. Although the answer could be inferred from other answers on the 

AGAR the Council should ensure all boxes are filled in, marking nil or not applicable where appropriate. 

Audit fee 

We enclose our fee note for the audit, which is in accordance with the audit fee scales set by SAAA, and 

available at http://www.localaudits.co.uk/fees.html  

We would be grateful if you could arrange for this to be paid at the earliest opportunity.  

Yours sincerely 

Cameron Waddell  

Partner 

 

 

 

Page 112

http://www.localaudits.co.uk/fees.html


Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Document is Restricted

Page 119

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 TOWN BENCHMARKING REPORT
	8 COMMITTEE MINUTES
	180723 C & E
	180730 Policy & Finance draft
	draft Document Retention Policy
	180801 Planning
	180822 Planning
	180903 C+E draft
	180906  Partnership draft
	180910 G & E draft
	180912  Planning Draft
	180917  Policy & Finance draft
	6 (ii) Unauthorised encampment policy

	9 2017-2018 YEAR END ACCOUNTS
	Leighton Linslade Town Council - final AGAR 2017-18

	15 TOWN COUNCIL MATTERS
	Appendix A - Professional Fees


